UWH Mo 10240018

(Ree. 4-58)

- Unilted States Department of the interlor
National Park Service

Nationai Register of Historic Places
Registration Form

This lorm Is for usa in nominating or requesting determinations of eligibility for Individual propertias or distrcts, See inatructions In Guidelinas
for Complating Natjons!l Register Forms (National Register Bulletin 16). Complele each item by marking " in the appropriale box or by enlsting
the requosted information. It an item does not apply to the propeity boing documented, enter "NfA" for “not applicable.” For tunclions, styles, matsiels,
and ajezx of significancs, eatur only the calegories and subcategories listed In the Instructions, For additional space use confinuntion gheels

{Ferm 19-900a). Typs &l entriea.

1. Name of Property _
historis namae - Rackus, n.M., Lodge
other namas/site number Camp ToxXaway; Canaan iLand

2. Lacation
slroet & number

1t/ d not for publication

city, town Cold Mountain Gap Road,lake Toxsway -1xyvicinity
stata ‘Ior g Carollna code HC county Jackson code 039 zip code
Transylvania 175

3 Clusslficatlon .
Ownership of Property Calegory of Property Number of Resources within Propery
private : [ Tbuitding(s) Contributing Noncontributing
(] pubtic-tocal [x] district 6 2 _buildings
[ public-State {Isite : sites
[ public-Federal [T structure structures

[_Jobject , objects

6 2 Total

Number of contributing resources praviously

Name of related multipie property listing:
W/A listed in the Natlonal Register ___ 9 _

4. State/Federa! Agency Gertlfication

As the deolgnaied authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, os amended, | hereby cerify that this
@nomlnalion Drequast for dotermination of oligibllity meets the documentation standards for registering preperties in the
MNational Re ister of HI§!G ¢ Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements sst forth In 36 CFR Part 60.
In m éj ! .on the pe %@gm is Ddoes not meet the National Register criteria. DSaa continuation sheel,

{ U Ls /A - L/“/g kgﬁ?
SIgPaT/ra of certlfymg otﬂda{ Date
_ State Historic Preservation Officex
Stals or Foderai agency and bureay

In my opinion, the property {_imests [__]does not meet the National Ragister critaria. [ "1san vontinuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other officlal Date

State or Fedetal agency and hureay . N ——

5. Natlonal Park Service Cerfification i -
i, hereby, cenlity that this proparty is:
Daniered in the Natlonat Regisiar,

[ 1Ses continuation sheet. e : — et enn
[Cidetarmined eligible for thé: Natlonal

Realster, J Sea conbinustion shael, - . e v marar ot e mnin S,
i__l determined not sligitle tor the,

National Register, | —_ - — N — -

[ “Jremovad hom the National Ragister. . — S
[:] other, {explain:) I

i e & o e tr 84k e e e e e R s e

T Signature ot tho Keepor Date of Action




L. runpLeLuvrn v Uso

,Hlslonc Functions (ent_e_f categories from instructions)

v o =OFUSTIC, gingle dwelling
,{)cmest}.c: _._camp

7$§scrlption

Current_ Funcuons [(enter categories from |nstrucuons)
BLEASE R N single dyelling

Architectural Classiiication
(enter calegories from instuctions)

OPHREK: rustic log

. Materials (enter categories from instructions)

foundation __. shone
walls | 10 o
roof aspestos.
other wond

stone

Doscribe present and historic physical appearance,

The Dackus Lodge proverty is located om Cold Mountain Gap in Jackson County,

with part of the grmm@s extending Iiﬂt.o Transylvania County. - The property, 'appr'oxir'nately.
- 20 acres, lies at an altitude of 4,000 feet and nestles into a shallow bowl
where the headwaters of the Toxaway River have been dammed into a small lak

The TLodge property‘consiSts of three buildings constructed about 1958, &
1 1/2 story huntiﬁg lodge, & stable and caretaker's cottage, and fiver other

ouildings, all groupedaround the lake., Two of the later buildings were'
erected after 1955 and are non-convributing. The property is asccessible fr.
Take Toxawzy, NC, over .a five-mile gravel rcad opened in 1908, The Backus

Lodge site continues to be used esdentisally as it was during ivs period of

A

significance, that is, as a seasonal

ch
ta

pines &nd hardwoods., There 1is no

2 Yetreat . LU conveys an isolated visual
waracter, of hmuildings grouped on the edge of a sunken lzke, surrounded by
211 view down the mountain, A small syrin

nas been re-opened near the guest cottage, Uncultivated woodlands, rhnodo-

dendrons, and pine irees provide background.

1, Main lodg 1903, contributing:

€,
somstime after June, 1303, rdward #,

1/2 story, double-pile house of che
P

ackus vegan construction of a large,

stnut logs. The logs, unpeeled and

matched, were brougnt by wagon from various spots in the Lake Toxaway area,
and are sixteen inches in diameter and laid with saddle notching. The roof
of the lodge is hipped and contains three gavled wall dormers on the front

snd back elevations, and two gabled

L]

4
zables are shingled and froni-facing

-
wall dormers on each side elevaiion, Th
ables have ridge caps and acroteria.

ESae continuatior; sheet
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Small front and side entrance porches have shallow hipped roofs and bent
wood bracksts suppdrting a spindle band. ﬁindows on the first floor are sing
spaced,'double~sashed wooden frames with diamond mullions in the upper sash,
Windows in the gabled dormers are in pairs, wiith the exception of Thie center
gablied dormer on fronit elevatiop,which containsihree double-sashed windovs,
#Window and door framing is pine painted wnite. The foundation of the build-
ing is field stone, and two sgquare, interior chimneys are granite ashliar. Th
rooi is asphalt shingle, although it may have been originally constructed of
wood shingles, whicn are visible on the caretaker's cotitage built during- the
same period. Residents of the area report that twhe chestnut logs were pulie:
Ly oxXen up earthen moun@s and were raised into position with block and tackl
Earth from the mounds was tien used to smooth the banks of the central lake.
The lodge retains an unusual degree of architectural integrity vecause it
has not been altered except ror kitchen rehabilitation and the introduction

of eleciricity in the summer of 19%sg .

The interior of the lodge contains eignht rooms on two floors,grouped arount
a central hall on each floor, Chnestnut logs are exposed, chinked with chestn
vlanks. The exposed ceiling beams of the first floor are pbplar logs with,
tongue and groove oax planking. Qak planking was also used for fioors. 4
straight'stairway of oak rises to the left side of the entrance, hall. The
open-string stair has an ornate, Neo-classical style railing with a heavy
paneled newel, turned balusters and molded handrail. To the left of the cen
nall is a double parlor, with a brick fireplace centered in the dividing wall
and flanked by log pbst and beam openings. To the right of the entrance hall
is a study which contains on the interior wall a similar brick fireplace

and chimneypiece. Both fireplaces have round arched brick openings with bric!
voussoirs and egg and dart terra cotta decoration at the mantel. These are
said to have been built by the poss ramily, local masons. The kitchen, to
the right ol the ceﬁtral hall and behind the svudy, and the four bedrboms on
the second floor have svove pipe 0peniﬁgs in the chimneys, The four bedrooms

N
’ , . - 1
lie two on each side of the hall; at the rear of the hall is a bathroom with

a tiny, footed tub. In the southeast bedrcom the walls are covered withches



3 TETR Lraea . Rl Ve =¥ a L T P VYRT ]

(o0

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet |

Section number __7___ Page _2

nut planking, perhaps Tor warmtnh, All interior doors have. five horizonsal

]
panels and door and window frames are plain.

2. Stable, 1308, raised to two stories about 1322, contributing:
Bdward Backus also directed the construction of a stable of chesinut logs,

ular tailding three bays wide and two bays deep., ~Lvout 13822

ot

is a recton

=1

.2
4
a vboard and vatten second story was added to provide room for cawpers, The
center bay of the front elevation is open to the lake, {the opening sheltered
by a porch with shallow hipped roof and sapling posts. Set high in the rear
wall are four single-sash,diamond-mullioned windows, indicating the location .
of the horse stalls,which were removed when the building‘was convertéd to a -
bunk house and recreation room for the campers, A large stone fireplace is
centered on the north end of the building. Closed stairs lead to the second '

floor,

A

Caretaker's cottage, 1903, raised to two stories about 1922, contributing:
The caretaker's cobttage, also of chestnut logs with board and batten second

) N By - - LY ‘
story, contains itwo rooms with stoves on the first floor., The added second’

floor is entered from outside, at the rear or noritn end of the tuilding, and

was designed for a campers! bunk room.

4, Guest-cottage, ¢, 1922, contributing.

%hnen the Backus property was purcnased by Sallie and Xatherine Davis and
develoﬁed as Camp Toxaway iﬂ 1922, addiftional buildings were added to the thre
original ouildings. A four-room, one-story board and batten guest nouse was
constructed near the spring and close to the present entrance road.

5. Barn, c. 1922, deteriorating. contributing.
Aplank barn was built at the time of the Davis Cottage, c. 1922, and was

also used asa garage during the 1930s,

6. Davis Cottage, c. 1922, contributing: _

This four-room shingled cottage with clipped gable roof was built as a home
for tne Davis ?amily. It is located on the original gravel entrance road on -
the east side of the property. Katherine Davis lived here after the camp

closed in the mid 1930s., It has been completely remodeled inside.
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. 7. Recreation builcding, c¢. 1955, non-contrikuting
b .
Katherine Davis sold the Camp Toxaway property to Rev. Dan Williams in
1955, After that date, a board and batten recreation building was constructed

on thne east side of the original entrance road,

03]

. Cnapel of the Haster, 13965, non—contributing
1965 an i-frame chapel with shingle roof was built on the east side of

n

L

the property between the recreation building and “the main lodge for use by

Janaan Land campers.



8. Statemen! of Significance
Ceni{ying official has considered the significance of this property in relalion to other properlies:

[ ] nationally [ ]statewide (X J¥ocally

Applicable National Register Criteria @A DB C DD

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ Ja [ 18 [ Jc [ o [ Je [JF [Ja

Areas of Significance (enler categories from instruclions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
Architecture 1908-1935 %908
Entertainment /Recreation 1977

. 1935

Cul!uralNA}fKialion

Signiticant Peﬁs/c? Architecl/Builder
Unknown

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above,

Backus Lodge, built in 1908 atop Cold Mountain Gap near Lake Toxaway, North Carolina,
is eligible for the National Register under Criterion C as one of the best examples
of the Adirondack style of resort architecture surviving in western North Carolina.
Because of its association with the recreational development of western North
Carolina by out-of-state industrialists between 1890 and 1910, it is also eligible
for the Register under Criterion A. Backus Lodge realizes the recreational interests
of one industrialist, E. M. Backus, who made the region his home from 1904 to 19216.
The lodge site maintained its recreational character after Backus left the area,
becoming an exclusive girls' camp, Camp Toxaway, in 1922, and a religious and
educational retreat in 1955. Today the lodge and its five contributing associated
buildings and two noncontributing buildings function as a private residence. The
period of significance ends in 1935, when Camp Toxaway closed,

Architectural Context

Health and pleasure drew outsiders to the mountains of western North Caroclina after
the Civil War and the opening of the railroad to Asheville in 1883. These visitors,
"the energetic new rich of the Gilded Age," launched the region's resort industry.
The new leisure class byilt Biltmore Estate, 1895-1900. (NHL) and the Grove Park Inm,
-1913 (NR)in Asheville. The rustic stone Grove Park Inn is perhaps the single
finest surviving example of the Adirondack style in North Carolina. One of the
earliest examples of the style was the Black Forest Hunting Lodge near the Cradle

of Forestry at Mt. Pisgah, twenty miles southwest of Asheville. Tt was built about
1895 by George Vanderbilt, using unpeeled logs and saplings as construction materials.
Tt was destroyed in the 1940s, but the old Pisgah Inn, built in the Adirondack style
in 1919, still stands on the Blue Ridge Parkway south of Asheville. Although no
thematic inventory of rustic inns of the period has been made in western North
Carolina, it appears that Backus Lodge is one of the finest surviving smaller
examples of the style.

&]See continualion sheet



KPS Form 10-0004
{889y OMB Appeoral M. 10240018

Unlted States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Sectioii nimber __ 8 Page __1_

Recreation Context

By 1900 several wmining and lumber companies had been founded by Northern imndustrialists
in the "beautiful Sapphire country" of southwestern North Carolina, about thirty miles
southwest of Asheville, Tourism was an offghoot of these industrial interests. In 1900
J. Frances Hayes of Newcastle, Pennsylvania, built the Franklin Hotel in Brevard to
capitalize on the scenic beauty and healthful climate of the region. By 1904 he

had formed the Toxaway Company, damned the Toxaway River to create Lake Toxaway

and opened the renowned, deluxe Toxaway Inn on the lake.3 Until 1916 the Toxaway

Inn, about twelve miles west of Brevard, entertained scores of the 'mew rich,"

who rested, hunted, danced and ate at the famous inn and rode to visit the other

inns of the Toxaway Company, the Fairfield TInn near Cashiers and the Sapphire Tnn

about five miles west of Lake ToXaway,

Historical Background

Edward M. Backus, of Chicago, also developed a keen interest in the commercial

and recreational resources of the region. In 1904 and 1906 he acquired by long-term
lease residential land in the Sapphire Inn area from the Toxaway Company.6 In 1906
he bought outright 1450 acres of woodland on the Blue Ridge atop Cold Mountain

Gap near Lake Toxaway, where he subsequently built his hunting lodge.’ 1In 1909

he acguired 640 acres of land near the Sapphire Inn, where he had interests in
corundum mining and milling.8 He frequented the Toxaway Inn with his wife,

and no doubt consorted with notables of the time whose names appear in the

Toxaway Inn guest register along with Backus: George Vanderbilt, Carl Schenk,
Henry M. Flagler and Thomas Edison, as well as Jerome Moltz of Pittsburgh and

J. L. Lupton eof Chattancoga, both of whom purchased property from Backus at

later dates,
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On May 6, 1903, the Aéhevilleubitizen rerorted that the Toxaway Company nad
constructed a new ",,.drive.,.. of scenic interest"... from the hotel grounds

Cold #ountain, providing ".., easy access to the fine fishing

to the gap o
10, It was at thne end

and views at the headwaters of the Tuckaseegee River."
of the well-timed road construction that =.M. Backus built nis "lodge", using
unpeelad chestnut logs brougnt to the site bLedded in straw in wagons pulled
by oxen. Oxen also pulled the logs up gradually heightened mounds of earth
to form the log walls of the building; the earth mounds were later used to
smootn out the bangs of a small lakRe, formed by damming the headwaters of -
tne Toxaway River. '*Backus provided a stable and servants cottage of chestnut
logs and adced a stone Tireplace in the stable for the comfort of the horses.
While there is no record of Backus's guests at his lodge, it is reasonable

to sﬁppose that he entertained notables visiting at the Toxaway Inn and

who wished to enjoy his commodious lodge in a wild, scenic, solitary mouniain-

top, easily accessible by motor car,

By 1912 the corundum mines near the Sapphire Inn had failed and Backus sold
his Sappnire property to J.L. Lupton.12' After the bursting of the dam av
Lake Toxaway in 1916, Backus sold his .Backus Lodge property on Cold Hountain
Gap to Jerome ioltz and left the area.qB' ¥Moltz, originally from Pittsburghn,
was the 6wner of the Moltz Lumber Company of Lake Toxaway, He sutsequently
extended a railrocad to the top of Cold Mountain Gap and transporied logs
from Greenland Laurels and from the Backus Lodge property.14° In 1922 Moltz
sold the ten acre Backus Lodge tract, including the log lodge, stable and

cottage, to Sallie Joyner Davis, of Greenville, North Carolina.

Sallie Davis, with her mother and her sister, Katherine, renovated the
Backus buildings for Camp .Toxaway, an exclusive girls' camp. They nelieved
that ",.,1ife in %the open, with its wholesome .group activities that give
outlet‘for'the nidden sources of strength, is a vital factor in the training
of girls, endorsed by parents and educators.”16' The Davises adépﬁed the

lodge for dinipg facilities, calling it Cold Mountain Lodge, and added a
second story of board and batten to the stable and to the caretaker's cottage.

They also built a shingle cottage for their use as a family home. Ruhning



K3 Fored 10-46000-4 . LBID ApproTa IR UL e
L]

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section humber _3____ Page

water was provided for campers from a reservoir above the lake., The camp
of fered norseback ridirg, swimming, rowing, canoeing, outcdoor camping and
niking - tuition for the season of eight weeks was 3250.00, Jerome Moltz's
railroad was used to bring the campers vo the mountain top.17' In 1826,

Redbook Magazine declared Camp Toxaway "...,a veritable Garden of the Gods -
one of the most beautiful spois on tne top of an almost inaccessible moun-

n18. ' ‘
tain.

Camp Toxaway closed in 1935 and Sallie Davis left the area, Katherine Davis
continued to live in the shingle cottage until 1955, when she sold the ten
acre camp to Rev, J. Dan Williams and nis wife, Christine, of Greenville,

19.

South Carolina.

Dr. Williams designed a mountain retreat with religious orientation: "If
earth and sky and sun and stars offer you fulfillment that can't be matched
by an invented pastime, CANAAN LAND is your place to'be.“zo‘ The property was
re-named Canaan Land to reflect the Christian convictions of the Williamseg,
and the buildings were given biblical names, thne lodge being called Cana

and the stables Fair Haven, A recreation building on the east side of the
entrance road was constructed and in 1965 an A-frame chapel was built between
the recreation building and the original lodge. After Dr., Williams's death in
1973, the chapel was dealcated to him and named the Chapel of the Master., Mrs.
Ullllams continued to omeraue Canaan Land as a retreat and conference center
for groups with an educational or rellglous aim, and the camp continued to

be used into the 19805.21

ITn 1986 the ten acre site was purchased by lMr. and Mrs. George R, Corbett
for use as a personal retreat. They also acqulred an addltlonal 10.8 acres
between the Cold lountair Gap Road and the c fﬁtuo aTio §F1J¥§§%%ﬁf%MQL
the public road acgess.zz' The Corbett family and their friends have refur-
bished thé buildings, providedelectricity, repaired the lake and resarvoir,
and replanted and re-forested. -

f
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FOOTNOTES
‘Wathans, Sydney, The Quest for Progress: The Way We Lived in North Carolina,
* 1876—1920, Po 87.
*Tovid,
B'Yan Noppen,Ina ¥. and John J., ‘Jestern North Carclina Since the Civil war,
pages 262-263.
4.Tbld

S'Altnough the property name is often spelled "Baccus", all deeds and the
Toxaway Inn guest vregister carry the signature, "“ M., Backus."iA deed of
July 2, 1912, Jackson County .Deed Book 31, page 500 refers to ©,M,,
Backus "of Chicago, Cook County, Illinois." Local legend calls Backis
a"Brazilian rubber baron," This has not been substantiated., :

"Jackson County Register of beeds, RBook 37, page 391; Book‘42, page 207,
7‘Jackson County Register of Deeds, Book 24, page 333; Dook 2%, page 219,

8'Jackson County Register of Deeds, Book 28, page 63, ilsc, telephone con-
versation with Allen McKinney, who stated that Backus developed the
Sapphire Lakes mining area, ilso,telephone conversation with J., Craig
Cranston whose mother visited tne defunct mines with Backus about 1910

‘Toxaway Inn Guest Reglster, three volumes, 1905 and 1906, property of thq
Transylvania County Historic Properties Commission, Brevard.

*Asneville Citizen, May 28, 1303,

1.9he Highlander, Highlands, ¥C, May-29, 1980.
12'1‘"ansy1vania County Register of Deeds, Book 31, page 500.
13‘Jackson County Register of Deeds, Book 73, page 39,
14‘Plemfnons, Jan C., Treasures of Toxaway, page 40.

5. *Jackson County Register of Deeds, Book 85, page 458,

16. ‘The Highlander, op. cit.

K ‘Davis, Sallie Joyner, Katherine, and Clara Joyner, Camp Toxaway, camp
brochure, 1924,

The Highlander, op. cit,.
9. *Jackson County Register of Deeds, 300k 212 page 451.

1

2

6

('\

10

13.

20'?1111ams, Cnris, banaan Lend, brochure,
21'”ne dighlander, op. cit. ,
22'*ac&son County Register of Deeds, Book 632, vage 336; Eook 652, page 24,
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10. Geodgraphical Data
Acreage of property 20.59 acres

UTM References |
ALzl Bliislosiol 1318191216190 Blu7d Bhebool Beglebonl

Zone  Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing
cli,7} [3]1,8{1,7,0] [3,8]9,2(2,8,0] pRL7| B 7B880] BB 2[360]

DSee continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description

The boundaries of the property are outlined in red on the survey prepared by
John R. Long Associates, Clemson, $.C., updated 10-30-86, Tracts A,B, and C.

[::] See continuation sheet

Boundary Justification
The boundaries include the 9.78 acre tract known as the Backus Lodge Tract when
conveyed to Sallie J. Davis in 1922, and two tracts which were part of the
original, larger tract and have been reassembled by the present owners. These
tracts, "B" and "C", total 10.81 acres and contain the guest house (#4), ca. 1922, a

contributing resource, and extend to the public ﬁgss road, Colg Mountain Gap Rd. (SR 1301)
ee continuation sheet
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organization dale —E?W‘————
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CANAAN LAND

(map of the Christian camp which operated on the Backus Lodge.
property from 1955 to the 1980s)







